
 

 -1- 

 

SOUTH BROWARD DRAINAGE DISTRICT 

GOVERNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 

FEBRUARY 23, 2017 

 

Present:  

Scott Hodges, Chairperson Kevin M. Hart, District Director 

James Ryan, Vice Chairperson Reina Muniz, Recording Secretary 

Vicki Minnaugh, Treasurer Douglas R. Bell, Legal Counsel 

Robert E. Goggin, IV, Secretary 

Alanna Mersinger, Commissioner 

General Public: See Attached List 

Thomas Good, Commissioner    

Mercedes Santana-Woodall, Commissioner  

 

Absent: 

 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 

 

01.   CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

   Chair Hodges called the SBDD Board Meeting to order at 8:01 a.m.; with Vice Chair Ryan, 

Commissioner Minnaugh, Commissioner Mersinger, Commissioner Goggin, and Commissioner 

Santana-Woodall present; followed by the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 

02.   PUBLIC COMMENT  

 

None.  

 

03.   APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

Commissioner Minnaugh moved for approval of the minutes of the January 26, 2017, South 

Broward Drainage District Board meeting.  Motion was seconded by Commissioner Santana-

Woodall and it was carried unanimously. 

 

04. DIRECTOR=S REPORT  

 

A. PRESENTATION OF FINAL SBDD FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE FISCAL 

YEAR ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 BY BARRY FINK, CPA 

District Director Hart stated that the final report of the SBDD Financial Statement for the 

Fiscal Year Ending September 30, 2016 was prepared by the District’s accounting firm, 

Margolies, Fink and Wichrowski, Certified Public Accounts (MFW), and that Barry Fink, 

CPA was at the meeting to present the report.  

 
Mr. Fink stated that other than some minor changes made to the report that were provided by 
Attorney Bell, that there was nothing more to add to his presentation; and he would be happy 
to answer any questions from the Board. 
 



 

 -2- 

 

Commissioner Minnaugh moved for approval of the Final SBDD Financial Statement for the 

Fiscal Year ending September 30, 2016.  Motion was seconded by Commissioner Santana-

Woodall and it was carried unanimously. 

 

B. RELEASE AND VACATION REQUEST OF SURFACE WATER MANAGEMENT 

AREA (SWMA) DESIGNATION FOR CANADA RESIDENCE; SUBJECT TO THE 

DEDICATION OF A NEW SWMA  

 

District Director Hart said that the owner of the property located at 17800 S.W. 52nd Ct., 

Southwest Ranches, FL 33331 requested that SBDD vacate the Surface Water Management 

Area (SWMA) that was previously designated and recorded under OR Book 32550, Page 

1577, B.C.R.  All properties in the SW Ranches are required to set aside 20% of their property 

at elevation 5.0’ (or an equivalent storage area) as a SWMA. 

 

The property owners, John & Patricia Canada, will dedicate a new SWMA over the property 

to comply with the 20% SWMA requirement.  District Director Hart said that SBDD staff 

has reviewed the request and has no objections.  There are no financial impacts to this Agenda 

Item, other than SBDD administrative costs; all other costs will be incurred by the property 

owner. 

 

Commissioner Goggin moved for approval for the Release and Vacation of the SWMA 

Designation for the Canada resident located at 17800 S.W. 52nd Ct., Southwest Ranches, FL; 

subject to the dedication of a new SWMA in accordance with SBDD Criteria.  Motion was 

seconded by Commissioner Minnaugh. 

 

Commissioner Goggin asked about the last sketch in the agenda package that shows two 

different properties:  17800 and 17810.  District Director Hart explained that previously, the 

17800 address was part of a larger property that got subdivided, and he wanted to show the 

original SWMA designation on both properties; but the agenda item is just for the 17800 

property, which is owned by Mr. Canada.  District Director Hart also clarified that the correct 

address for the SWMA Vacation was 17800 S.W. 52nd Ct.    

 

The question was called and it was carried unanimously. 

 

C. PARTIAL VACATION REQUEST OF A WATERWAY MAINTENANCE 

EASEMENT ON PROPERTY OWNED BY MARNATHA IRENE TERNIER  
 

District Director Hart said that the owner of the property located at 9531 SW 6th Street, 

Pembroke Pines, FL 33025 requested that SBDD vacate the south ten feet (10’) of a 20-foot 

Waterway Maintenance Easement (WME) that runs along the north property line.  The subject 

property is located in the Skomill Section One residential community and borders an existing 

water body that was dedicated by the “Skomill Section One” plat (PB 105, PG 39, BCR) to 

the “perpetual use of the adjacent property owners”. The 20-foot WME was also dedicated by 

the “Skomill Section One” plat. 

 

Based on a survey of the property and a site investigation by SBDD staff, the full width of 

the 20’ WME is not needed for SBDD to access the adjacent water body, if ever needed.  

There is approximately 32 feet from the edge of water to the back of the 20’ WME.  Based 



 

 -3- 

 

on the limits of the proposed vacation, SBDD will maintain a minimum of 20 feet outside of 

the existing edge of water for access purposes. 

 

SBDD staff has reviewed the request and has no objections. 

 

This request is being made in association with an initiative by the property owner to obtain 

an after-the-fact permit from SBDD for an existing deck located within the 20’ WME.  The 

permit from SBDD would be subject to the following:  the Board’s approval of the partial 

vacation; a modification to the existing deck to remove an overhead trellis; removal of a 

second (older), existing deck; entering into an Agreement with SBDD; and payment of all 

permit fees and costs. 

 

There are no financial impacts to this Agenda Item, other than SBDD administrative costs; 

all other costs will be incurred by the property owner. 

 

The request is for SBDD to vacate and release its interest in the south 10 feet of the 20-foot 

Waterway Maintenance Easement on the property located at 9531 SW 6th Street, Pembroke 

Pines, FL 33025.      

 

Commissioner Goggin moved for approval for the Partial Release and Vacation of a waterway 

maintenance easement on property owned by Marnatha Irene Ternier.  Motion was seconded 

by Commissioner Minnaugh. 

 

Commissioner Mersinger asked if, when the owners purchased the property, did all the items 

mentioned above already exist.  District Director Hart replied that the older deck already 

existed, but the new deck was constructed afterwards.  He said that the homeowner 

approached SBDD and asked what they needed to do to get a permit.  SBDD reviewed the 

property with the homeowner, and gave the homeowner their recommendation.  This is 

consistent with other action that the Board has taken along that same water body.  

Commissioner Mersinger asked whether the home owner agreed to all of the stipulations.  

District Director Hart replied yes. 

 

Chair Hodges asked if there was a HOA or City permit required.  District Director Hart replied 

yes, a City permit is required; however, the first step was for the homeowner to get an approval 

from the District, prior to obtaining the City permit. 

 

The question was called and it was carried unanimously. 

 

Commissioner Good joined the meeting at approximately 8:10 a.m 

 

D. SBDD RESOLUTION 2017-01 – ADOPTING POLICIES FOR THE SALE, LEASE, 

OR TRANSFER OF SURPLUS LAND (REAL PROPERTY)  

 

District Director Hart presented proposed SBDD Resolution No. 2017-01 which will adopt 

proposed Policies and Guidelines for the sale, lease, conveyance, or transfer of surplus land.   

The Policies and Guidelines have been revised to incorporate the changes requested by the 

Board at the November Board meeting. 

 



 

 -4- 

 

The proposed Policies and Guidelines are intended to provide the District with a mechanism 

for disposing of surplus land in a manner that is in the best interest of the District, and the 

Board shall be required to approve the sale, lease, conveyance, or transfer of any surplus 

land. 

 

The District Director requested approval of the Policies and Guidelines for the sale, lease, 

conveyance, or transfer of any surplus land, and said that the approval of Resolution No. 

2017-01 will establish these policies and guidelines. 

 

Commissioner Mersinger moved for approval of Resolution 2017-01, Adopting Policies for 

the Sale, Lease or Transfer of Surplus Land.  Motion was seconded by Commissioner Goggin. 

 

In discussion, Commissioner Good stated that Section 5A-2 references “the advertisement for 

two consecutive weeks in the newspaper”.  He suggested that the District increase that time 

period to something more conducive for people to perform due diligence for buying land.   

 

Commissioner Minnaugh commented that a due diligence period would be stated in the 

contract, and it usually gives them from 60-90 days.   

 

District Director Hart said that the advertisement would list when the bids are due, so the 

District would have the ability to place as much time as necessary, or whatever the Board 

deems necessary. 

 

Commissioner Good said that in order to receive the highest bid, we need to give people the 

appropriate amount of time to do their research, and to make the determination if they are 

going to bid or not.  If you don’t give the appropriate amount of time to a bidder it may limit 

the amount of bidders you have.    

 

District Director Hart recommended that the District add 60 days.  It was agreed by the Board 

members that they would add 60 days for the bid period. 

 

Commissioner Good said that there is probably relevance to make a specific reference to 

sealed bids, as opposed to just receiving bids; and there is probably more protection to staff, 

if bids come in sealed.  District Director Hart agreed. 

 

Commissioner Good said that he didn’t see the difference on items #3 and #4.  District 

Director Hart explained that item #3 is saying that if the District does not receive an acceptable 

bid, the District can then sell the property to the highest offer the District receives 

(subsequently) without having to re-advertise. It removes the requirement to re-advertise the 

property for sale, in order to sell it.  Item #4 allows the District to sell below the appraised 

value of the land, if in fact, the Board determines that it is in the best interest of the District.  

He then deferred to Attorney Bell.   

 

Attorney Bell explained that #3 is where SBDD advertises for the sale of land and receives 

“no bids”, or “no acceptable bids”; and #4, is where SBDD just receives “no acceptable bids”.   

 

Commissioner Good asked where in the policy, does it state that the District may re-advertise 

for bids, if desired.  District Director Hart replied that it doesn’t specifically state that; 



 

 -5- 

 

however, he thinks that it would be covered under the fact that if the District does not receive 

a bid, they can re-advertise, or waive the requirement to advertise a second time; and we would 

follow the same protocol that is in place for selling land if the District decides to re-advertise.  

He said that would be up to the discretion of the Board.  

 

Commissioner Mersinger commented that in the same Section #3, if there is no acceptable 

bid, how come we reference the “highest acceptable bid”.  It’s either acceptable or 

unacceptable. 

 

Chair Hodges suggested that the word acceptable be removed.  District Director Hart replied 

yes, he will remove that word. 

 

Commissioner Good said that the reason he brought this up, is because item #3 starts out with 

the phrase “whenever possible”, and it seems that could go either way; it could favor someone 

who submits a bid that we don’t accept.  He said that they could use that wording against us 

if we try to re-advertise.   

 

District Director Hart said that maybe they could use better wording; but the intent is always 

to sell the property at, or above, the appraised value, but they didn’t want to eliminate the 

possibility for the District to sell land below the appraised value; if that was in the District’s 

best interest.  He said that they wanted the policy to state that the number one goal is to sell 

at, or above, appraised value, and that is always going to be our intent; and he could see how 

there may be some instances where they can get 3 or 4 bids below the appraised value, and 

the Board may determine that those are the highest offers we are going to get; and if we have 

a hard line that says we have to sell land at the appraised value; he felt that put too big of a 

restriction on the District.    

 

Chair Hodges suggested that it can say, “The District can sell land at, or above, the appraised 

value, however, we shall not be required to sell it at that value if we don’t get a high enough 

bid”. 

 

Commissioner Minnaugh asked Attorney Bell if the District has to go through a bidding 

process, or can we just advertise that this property is for sale; and then receive an intent to 

purchase, or a contract, or an offer.  Attorney Bell said that you need to go out for bids.   

 

Commissioner Minnaugh noted that the policy says prior to the sale, the “following 

documents shall be prepared”; and she wanted to know who will prepare the documents.  She 

asked if the District is going to provide all of this to the bidders as part of the package.  Are 

we going to provide a survey dated within 12 months; a sketch; a title update to show that 

there is clear title; and are we providing the appraisal, because the policy states that the 

purchaser or guarantee of the property is paying for the appraisal.  Attorney Bell said that the 

District would probably have an appraisal done before we go out for bids.  He said that we’ve 

done that before when we’ve sold property.   

 

Commissioner Minnaugh commented that if you want to do due diligence, this is all part of 

the contract.  She said that no one in their right mind, unless they are going to be the bonafide 

buyer or have a contract on it, will spend the money for all these testings, or on an appraisal.  

She suggested that the District should probably have a list of 3-5 appraisers that do this type 



 

 -6- 

 

of work, so that it is an agreed upon appraisal.  The average purchaser puts an offer in, and it 

is reviewed; and you may get multiple offers; and you look to see which one you want to work 

with.  She said she doesn’t see how the District will ever sell anything if they have to go 

through all this process. 

 

District Director Hart clarified that if the District has to request bids for the sale of property, 

they would have to decide on a case-by-case basis on what information to provide.   

 

Commissioner Minnaugh asked what the difference would be if:  you advertise that this parcel 

is for sale; the District can furnish a survey, and provide a sketch and legal description.  The 

terminology may be different, but have prospective purchasers submit a bid/offer, or an intent 

with things spelled out that this is what they are offering to pay; these are the terms; this is 

when they would like to close; this is what their due diligence time is; and then at that point, 

you build from there to actually expand on a better contract. 

 

District Director Hart said that he does not think that there is anything in the guidelines that 

would restrict the District from doing it in that manner.  After they get the bids they can say, 

we need an appraisal, etc., and it will be at the cost of the buyer, etc.  He said that from his 

interpretation they could proceed either way.    

 

Vice Chair Ryan asked if there is anything in the language that prohibits assignability.   

Commissioner Minnaugh said that unless it says in the contract that the contract can be 

assigned, you cannot do it.  Chair Hodges commented that could be included in the contract.   

 

Chair Hodges asked would there be a situation where there is a two foot strip of land that may 

be located behind someone’s house, and the District can just give it to them; does the District 

have to sell it.  District Director Hart replied no, that it is in the policy.  

 

Commissioner Mersinger had concerns that the District is above board in these matters.  She 

wanted to know what the restrictions are on who can bid on the property in order to keep the 

District clean.  She said that she does not want the Board to have any appearance of 

impropriety.  She wants to make sure that there is no thread between any of the Board 

members and the person buying that piece of property.  Commissioner Minnaugh said anyone 

can buy it.  District Director Hart commented that unless you are benefitting, there should be 

no conflict.   

 

Commissioner Minnaugh had concerns with how the property on Griffin and 172nd Avenue 

was sold about 10 or 15 years ago, where that property was literally, just about given away.  

That property was probably worth 4 times the amount of money that the District got for it.  

She said that just because it may be another governmental agency, they need to pay what that 

property is worth.   

 

District Director Hart went through the following changes to be added to the policy:  

1.  To require sealed bids.   

2.  A minimum bid time of 60 days. 

 

Further discussion ensued, and Vice Chair Ryan made a motion to table the approval for 

Resolution 2017-01, Adopting Policies for The Sale, Lease or Transfer of Surplus Land to the 



 

 -7- 

 

next Board Meeting.  Motion was seconded by Commissioner Goggin and it was carried 

unanimously.  

 

E. OTHER 

 

District Director Hart recognized and thanked Detective Brilliant and Officer Dimeglio from 

the Davie Police Department, for being present at the Board Meeting this morning.  District 

Director Hart expressed concerns on a person from outside our District who expressed an 

interest in attending the meeting and speaking under public comments.  Fortunately, that 

individual decided not to come.  He said he just didn’t want to run into any issues if the 

meeting got disrupted.  He shared with the Board that he had met with the Andy Berns, Town 

of SWR Administrator, and they were very responsive to the concerns that he had raised in 

regards to the public meeting this morning.   

 

  Emerald Awards - District Director Hart said that he had submitted a application for 

an Emerald Award through the Broward County Environmental Planning And 

Community Resilience Division, under the category of Climate Action Leader; this is a 

new category that the County added to their Emerald Awards and he was pleased to say 

that SBDD was selected under the sub-category of green-house gas reduction; and this 

was for the District’s sluice gates and other initiatives that the District has taken in 

regard to climate change.  That will be presented on Saturday, March 11th, 2017 at the 

Water Matters Day.  It starts at 9:00 a.m. and awards start at 10:00 a.m. 

 

Commissioner Good suggested that Chair Hodges should be accepting the award.  He 

thinks it’s appropriate.  District Director Hart indicated that the Board Chair would be 

accepting the award on behalf of SBDD.   

 

 Garage Expansion Update - District Director Hart stated that the plans are 90% 

complete and the District is tentatively scheduled to submit for the permit next week 

and go out to bid, middle of next month; and if all goes well, SBDD staff may have the 

recommendation back to the Board in April, but hopefully, no later than May.  

 

 SBDD As-built Liability Account. - District Director Hart discussed the As-built 

Liability Account.  He said that this account holds all of the as-built bonds, and cash 

bonds for construction projects.   He said that before the District updated their criteria, 

those bonds were returned when the permittee requested the bonds to be returned; and 

now when the job is finished, the District automatically returns the checks; they do not 

wait for the request anymore.  He said that he realized that those bonds could be 

considered as “unclaimed funds”; he and attorney Bell did some research and found that 

they are considered “unclaimed funds”.  In order to be in compliance with the state 

statute on “unclaimed funds”, the District is required to return all of those funds; and if 

they are not able to locate the last known address of the permittee, or person who 

submitted the bond, the monies then go to the state.   

 

05. ATTORNEY=S REPORT:  

 
 Attorney Bell said for Special Districts there is one outstanding ongoing bill in the house that has to 

do with lobbyist requirements they have a policy in place and requires 8 hours of continued education 



 

 -8- 

 

and he was told that probably will not go very far.  

 
06. APPROVAL OF LEGAL FEES 
 
 Commissioner Goggin moved for approval of the legal bills.  Motion was seconded by Commissioner 

Santana-Woodall and it was carried unanimously.  

  

07.   BOARD MEMBER’S QUESTIONS/COMMENTS 

 

   Commissioner Mersinger expressed her thanks to Detective Brilliant and Officer Dimeglio, and to 

District Director Hart and Reina Muniz for being present at the Board meeting, for the consideration, 

and for not overreacting or underreacting to the situation.   

      

08. MEETING DATE(S) 

 
A. Regular Board Meeting will be held on Thursday, March 30th at 8:00 a.m.  

 

Adjournment at 8:50 A.M.  

 

Respectfully submitted,  

  

                                                                            

Robert E. Goggin IV, Secretary 

South Broward Drainage District 

 

 

/rim 





























































































































































































































DOUGLAS R. BELL
ATTORNEY AT LAW

CUMBERLAND BUILDING, SUITE 505
800 E BROWARD BOULEVARD

FORT LAUDERDALE, FLORIDA 33301
(954) 524-8526

March 22, 2017

South Broward Drainage District
6591 Southwest 160th Avenue
Southwest Ranches, Florida 33331

*I N V O I C E*

Legal services rendered on behalf of South Broward Drainage District from February 14,
2017 through March 21, 2017:

1. Coordination regarding Miramar Park of Commerce Phase V
Plat Note Amendment:

Attorney's Fees:      45 minutes @ $250.00/hr. = $ 187.50

2. Coordination regarding Surplus Property (Land) Policy:

Attorney's Fees:    3 hrs.  30 min. @ $250.00/hr. =$ 875.00

3. Coordination regarding Unclaimed Property (cash bonds):

Attorney's Fees:    4 hrs.  30 min. @ $250.00/hr. =$ 1,125.00

4. Coordination regarding District Financial Statement for Fiscal
Year 2015/16:

Attorney's Fees:       20 minutes @ $250.00/hr. = $ 83.33

5. Coordination regarding District’s Maintenance Building Improvements:

Attorney's Fees:       15 minutes @ $250.00/hr. = $ 62.50

****************

TOTAL DUE THIS INVOICE: $ 2,333.33


